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Oakland Farm House is a two-part house set on a slight rise 
above Corbett Road, fairly close to the road. It is now covered 
with white vinyl siding but the cornice details have not been 
lost. The house was well described by Andrew C. Clemens in a 1976 
term paper from which we quote the architectural and aesthetic 
paragraphs: 

It is hard to convey the feeling of peace and 
tranquility that one feels when visiting this house. The 
old barns and outbuildings, the immaculate garden, the 
fields and hedgerows, all contribute to a sense of 
timelessness and the heritage of good productive land. 

The smaller section of Mr. Pearce's house was prob­
ably built before 1800. The shape is rectangular, three 
bays in length, with a gable roof. It is of wood con­
struction with very old narrow wea_therboarding and has 
plain box cornices. The original house had two inside 
chimneys and the windows are six over six. There is no 
basement to this two-story-high section, which faced east 
with entrance from a three bay porch. 

Of the first floor rooms, one was a kitchen and re­
mains as a kitchen today with the installation of modern 
equipment. The central feature is still the large cook­
ing fireplace with wooden lintels. To the left of the 
fireplace is a narrow winding staircase that leads to two 
tiny servant's rooms above. 

The other downstairs room is now used a a dining 
room. It has the same seven-foot ceilings as the 
kitchen, a built-in corner cupboard and a simple fire­
place. Once there was a dog-leg staircase in the corner 
of this room, leading to space above divided into two 
bedrooms and a hall. Subsequent modifications included 
the removal of the staircase, the widening of the room to 
include the original porch and the construction of a 
series of windows, making a rectangular bay. The up­
stairs partitions were removed so that there is one large 
bedroom over this room but the ceiling beams give the 
dimensions of the original plan. 

That the addition to Ross Pearce's house was built in 
1810 is a visible fact as the present owners have found 
carved on a basement wall, "I. Prosser, Shrewsbury, York 
Co., 1810." The cellar is now reached by an outside 
entrance bulkhead, the interior stairs under the main 
stairway were removed to make way for a small powder room 
in the hall. 
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The 1810 wing matches the original house in its gable 
roof and weatherboarding but it has an attic and its 
cornice has a beautifully carved fret band frieze. The 
windows are again six over six, two were added by the 
present owner to lighten the hall but are in exact keeping 
with the rest of the house. 

Completing the house to a size appropriate for a 19th 
Century working farm, the new wing added two large parlors 
and a hall on the first floor and two bedrooms and a tiny 
"nursery" on the second floor, plus three small finished 
rooms in the attic. 

The parlors are identical, separated by folding doors, 
with twelve foot ceilings and simple black Italian marble 
fireplaces. It has been said that people came from miles 
around to admire the marble fireplaces, which would have 
been unusual in an early 19th Century house. 

Both parlors open to a wide stair hall running from 
the front to the back of the house. The stairs are two­
run, open well and of cherry and extend to the third 
story. The east or main entrance door has a plain rectan­
gular transom of glass and both doors are six paneled. 
There are plain white marble fireplaces in each bedroom 
and also built-in wardrobes. 

In all, the house has thirteen rooms including the two 
bathrooms and the rooms on the third floor. It is at 
present painted white with black shutter trim. 

On the wall in the front parlor are the pictures of 
the four Pearce men who have lived in the house, John 
Bacon Pearce, Jacob Myers Pearce, Edwin Laurence Pearce 
and Edwin Ross Pearce, the present owner. Mr. Pearce has 
a son and a grandson who live in another house on the 
property so the future of this lovely home is quite 
certain. ( 1) 

NOTES: 

1. Andrew C. Clemens, "Studies of Three Houses in 
Baltimore County", MS., 1975. 
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The Oakland Farm or Pearce House or Elmlea has been in the same 
family since 1831 when John Bacon Pearce purchased about 300 acres 
of the Clynmalira Manor from Henry Hill Carroll and Sarah Carroll, 
the builders of the 1822 Clynmalira mansion (MHT Site No. BA 112). 
(1) Clynmalira was one of twelve manors surveyed in Baltimore 
County in colonial times and, like the others, it never functioned 
as a manor with its lord of the manor conducting court of the 
manor. (2) The Baltimore County manors were merely large tracts 
of land, Clynmalira being 5,000 acres, very little developed until 
the 1820s when Henry Hill Carroll settled there and began a 
building program. (3) 

Possibly the costs of building Clynmalira mansion led the 
Carrolls to sell some of the eastern acreage to John B. Pearce. 

Mrs. Elmore Hutchins, the most thorough genealogical researcher 
of the adjoining manor, My Lady's, wrote that the Pearces purchased 
an existing house from the Carrolls. (4) The structure had started 
with a kitchen wing and to that had been added a well detailed 
frame and clapboard main block bearing the date 1810 scrawled on a 
timber by contractor Isaac Prosser of Shrewsbury, York County, 
Pennsylvania. (5) 

The question arises whether Henry Hill Carroll used Oakland 
Farm as a quarter house for some overseer before Clynmalira was 
completed. The smaller house is centrally located on the large 
manor whereas the Clynmalira mansion is at the western edge of that 
vast tract. (6) 

The small house would not have been needed as Henry Hill 
Carroll's own residence because he lived in the excellent brick 
18th Century house called Quinn or Sweet Air (MHT Site No. BA 
111). (7) 
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The 1798 tax list of Mine Run Hundred showed Carroll with 5,793 
acres, the only dwelling other than the brick mansion being a 
one-story log quarter house, 20 by 40 feet. (8) 

Thus, Oakland Farm house came on the scene between 1798 and 
1810, even if built in two phases. 

The 1850 map by J.C. Sidney and also the 1857 Taylor map show 
this as the T. (sic) Pearce house. The 1877 Hopkins atlas showed 
Jb. M. Pearce, who was also an atlas patron. In the patron list, 
he identified himself as a native of the county and gave his "date 
of settlement" as 1834, actually the year of his birth. (9) This 
was Jacob Myers Pearce, son of the first Pearce owners; he had been 
left in possession of the farm in 1856 when his parents moved to 
"Clifford", a house on present "J. Myers Road" within the confines 
of My Lady's Manor. (10) Clifford is MHT Site No. BA 122. 

John Bacon Pearce was one of those mentioned as supporters of 
President John Quincy Adams against Andrew Jackson in the hotly 
contested campaign of 1828. Neal A. Brooks remarks that Adams' 
stronghold was the north county where members of old families 
opposed Jacksonian democracy. (11) 

Scharf's 1881 county history presented a full-page engraved 
portrait of John B. Pearce and noted that five of his ancestors 
served in the Revolution without injury and all five were present 
at Cornwallis' surrender. His father, Thomas Pearce, served at the 
Battle of North Point, leaving fourteen-year-old John B. to run the 
farm. In fact, John B. Pearce witnessed the glare from the 
Bombardment of Fort McHenry while driving the family farm cart back 
from the city. John B. Pearce married Sophia Myers in 1832; Mrs. 
Pearce's brother was in the tobacco business in Baltimore and had a 
warehouse in Richmond that was later pressed into service as the 
Confederacy's Libby Prison. 

Scharf describes Pearce as an "Old Line Whig" who joined the 
Union Party on the collapse of the Whigs. He served in the 
Maryland General Assembly as a Union Party member in 1862 and 
1864. He later switched to the Democratic Conservative Party. (12) 

Scharf noted that Pearce was a life-long militia member and had 
made captain at an early age. Family papers in the Maryland 
Historical Society contain his commission as Major of the 41st 
Regiment of Maryland Militia, October 14, 1836. He was promoted 
lieutenant colonel by Governor Thomas Watkins Ligon on June 25, 
1857, and brigadier general by Governor Thomas H. Hicks on July 8, 
1861. Governor Hicks had just recently managed to prevent 
Maryland's secession from the Union. (13) Pearce was in command 
of the Eleventh Brigade, Maryland Militia (14) 
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Pearce was not a sessionist but had been a slaveholder. The 
family papers show his purchase of two slaves: Esther, age 12, in 
1832, and Edward in 1848. A draft for a run-away advertisement was 
signed by both John B. and William Pearce, offering a reward for 
nine escapees plus some infant children. Wesley, age 13, was 
described as "very intelligent". 

A printed list of members of the January 1862 session of the 
General Assembly shows that Pearce identified himself as a farmer 
and was staying at "Mrs. Munroe's Boarding House" in Annapolis. 
Another document is an original survey of a private lane, now Irish 
Avenue, made in 1830 to run southwesterly from "the road leading 
from Monkton Mills to Slade's Tavern." 

Pearce's Unionist sentiments may explain the $32,100 in 
Maryland Defense Loan bonds found in his post-mortem inventory; the 
sum was slightly more than half of his non-real estate assets. (15) 

John Bacon Pearce died on December 16, 1874, and left all his 
real estate in the county to son Jacob Myers Pearce; he left $500 
to Clynrnalira Methodist Episcopal Church. A bequest of $60 per 
year went to "Benjamin Williams (coloured), one who has been a most 
faithful servant for many years." (16) His obituary described him 
as 74 years of age and gave him the rank of General. (17) 

Jacob Myers Pearce, whose main residence became Clifford, 
bequeathed a life interest to the Oakland farm property to his son 
Edwin Lawrence Pearce in 1917. (18) Edwin Lawrence Pearce passed 
it on to his four children in 1930. Edwin Ross Pearce (1896-1976), 
one of the four heirs, operated the farm and also assembled a noted 
collection of Indian artifacts. The property remains in the same 
family, although held as a corporate farm since 1970. (19) 

NOTES: 

1. Baltimore County Deeds, WG 211:449, Hall of Records, Annapolis 
(hereafter, HR) . 

2. Patents, Liber DD No. 5, f. 717, HR. 

3. Harriet Winchester Jones, "A Childhood at Clynrnalira", 
Maryland Historical Magazine, 51 (June, 1956): 101. 

4. Elmore Hutchins, "Nicholas Hutchins of My Lady's Manor," MS., 
ca. 1976, privately distributed, p. 116. 

5. Andrew C. Clemens, "Studies of Three Houses in Baltimore 
County", typescript, July 31, 1975, copies at Maryland 
Historical Trust, Annapolis, and Baltimore County Historical 
Society, Cockeysville. 

6. Hutchins, "Nicholas Hutchins", p. 116. 
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7. Jones, "Childhood at Clynmalira", 53:113-115. 
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8. Federal Direct Tax List, Baltimore County, Mine Run Hundred, 
Entries No. 1516, 1928, microfilm in Office of Planning. (The 
second page is almost illegible.) 

9. G.M. Hopkins, Atlas of Baltimore County, Maryland 
Philadelphia, 1877). 

10. Hutchins, "Nicholas Hutchins", p. 116. 

11. Neal A. Brooks and Eric G. Rocke!, A History of Baltimore 
County (Towson, 1979), p. 125. 

12. J. Thomas Scharf, History of Baltimore City and County 
(Philadelphia, 1881), pp. 907-908. Governor Hicks served 
January 1858 to January 1862. 

13. Dennison Papers, Maryland Historical Society, MS. 1258. 

14. Baltimore County Advocate, August 3, 1861. 

15. B.C. Inventories, JBM 12:390. 

16. B.C. Wills, OPM 4:427. 

17. Baltimore County Union, December 26, 1874. 

18. B.C. Wills, WJP 21:309. 

19. B.C. Deeds, EHK JR. 6159:242. 
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